Manubhai & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Members of

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and Statement of Changes in iquity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as
“financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies  Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so requircd and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and ils cash
flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs}) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures (o
Board’s Report and Sharcholder’s Information but does not include the financial statements and our
audifor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thercon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears (0 be materially misstated. 1, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting prineiples
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting  Standards (Ind AS) specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the asscts of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularitics; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are frec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year 2018-2019
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Auditor's Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the  financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these  financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from crror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedutes that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequale internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. '

e [valuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of manapgement’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the  financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.

* Dvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the  financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggrepate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements,

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
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We communicate with those charged with povernanee regarding, among other matiers, (he
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with povernance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Req uircmenls

I, As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

{c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash I'low Statement and the
Statement of Chanpes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

{(d}  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with relevant rules issued
E
thercunder.

{e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act ' '

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate
Report in “Annexure ~ A”, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the company’s financial controls over financial reporting.

(g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with. the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that the
company being a private limited company provision of section 197(16) is not applicable.

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended. in our

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
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opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given {o us:
i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements. Refer Note 23 to the financial statements

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
liducation and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure — B” a
statement on matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order,

For Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.106041W/W100136

(K. C Patel)
Partner
Mecembership No. 30083

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 13, 2019

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
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ANNEXURE - A
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph I under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
report the members of Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Scetion 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private
Limited (The Company) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have also audited the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
cifectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable {inancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. Wc conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
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Our audit invelves performing procedures (o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial confrols over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating cffectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to {raud or ervor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial conirols system over
financial reporting.

. Mcaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal finaneial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that;

1} Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that reccipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Finaneial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporfing,
including the possibility of collusion ur improper management ovetride of controls, matetial
nusstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Iinancial Reporting issued by the ICAI,

For Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm*s Registration No. 106041 W/W100136

]
(K. C Patel)

Partner
Membership No. 30083

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 13, 2019

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year 2018 2019




Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURI - 3
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements” section of our
report the members of Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited of even date)
Report on the Companies (Auditor’ Report) Order, 2016, issued in terms of section 143
(11) of the Companies Act, 2013(‘the Act’) of Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
(‘the Company?*)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified during the year by the Management
in accordance with programme of physical verification, which in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all fixed asscts at a reasonable intervals having
regard to size of the Company and nature of fixed assets. According to the
information and explanation given {0 us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(¢} The title deeds of the immoveable property are held in the name of the Company.

(i) The Company had no inventory during and at the year end. Thercfore, the reporting
requirements of paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iify  The Corpany has not granted loans, secured or unsecured fo companies, firms or
other partics covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.
Therefore, the reporting requirements of paragraph 3 (iii) of the Order are not
applicable.

(iv)  The Company has not given loans, made investments or provided guarantces or
security, attracting the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Hence the
reporting requirements of paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed

there under.

(vi)  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company that are in
pursuance (o the rules made by the Central Government of India, the maintenance of
cost records has been prescribed under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
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(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(x11}

(xiii)

(xiv)

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year 2018-2019

our examination of the reeords of the Company, amounts deducted/acerued in the
books of account in respeet of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees” stale insurance, income tax, custom duty, cess, goods and services tax and
other material statutory ducs as applicable have generally been repularly deposited
during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According (o the information and explanations given o us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respeet of provident fund, income tax, cess, goods and services (ax and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31%' March 2019 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable. As informed 1o us, provisions of
professional tax are not applicable (o the company,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no ducs
of income tax and poods and services tax or cess which have not been deposited with
the appropriate authoritics on account of any dispute.

Based on our audit procedure and the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
dues to banks and debenture holders. The Company does not have dues fo financial
mstitution, government as at the balance sheelt date.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer. In our opinion and according to the information -and explanations given by the
management, the company has utilized the monies raised by term loans and debi
instruments for the purposes for which they were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the
Management, we report that no material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

The Company being a private limited company the provision of section 197 is not
applicable to it and accordingly the reporting requirement of paragraph 3(xi) of the Order
is not applicable,

In our opinion the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore the reporting
requirement of Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and cxplanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, all the transactions with related parties are
in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and also the
details which have been disclosed in the financial statements are in accordance with the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

The Company has not made any preferehtial allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Hence the reporting requirement
of paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. :
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(xv)  According fo the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connecled to directors and hence provisions
of Section 192 of the Companics Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) According to the information given and as explained to us, the company is not required
to be registered under scction 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 106041 W/W100136

(K. C Patel)
Partner
Membership No. 30083

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 13, 2019

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
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Bllapur-Hungund Totlway Private Limlted
CIN 32 UAS203GI2010PTCOE9GGY
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

Note No. As ot As ot
Porticuinrs Marel 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
INILin Miljion iNR In Mltlton
ASSETS
1 {Naon-Current Assets
2 |Properly, Plant andd Equipments 2 352 2.65
Iy [Investment Property 3 0.94 0.54
¢ |Intangible Assels ' 4 8,387.63 8,762.G0
d [Financisl Assets
(i) Other Fnancial Assets 5 0.06 0.3
e [Other Non Current Assets 6 8.454 4.08
Total Non Current Assets B,AB0.69 B,770.30
2 |Current Assets
a [Financial Assets
{1} Investments 7 473,17 257.61
{ii) Trade Receivalles 8 . 0.19
(iti} Cash and Cash Fquivalents 9 32.27 45,54
(iv} Other Current Financlal Assots 5 24,97 23.60
I |Other Current Assels 6 124.81 100,13
Total Current Assets 660,22 427.13
Total Assets (Rounding) 4,060.91 4,197.43
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
1 |Equity Share Capital 10 1,009.60 1,009.60
2 {Other Equity 11 (1,090.32) {977.55)
Total Equity (80.72) 32,05
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
a [Financial iabilities
(i} Borrowings 12 7,711.89 7,881.07
b |Provisions 13 127.98 2.68
Total Non Current Liabilities 7,839.87 7,883.75
2 |Current Liabilities
a [Financial Liablities
(i) Trade Payable
-Dues to Micro & Small Enterprises - -
-Dues to Others 14 15.14 38.87
(i1} Dther Financial Liabilitfes 15 185.69 105.58
b [Other Current Lahilities 16 6,79 43,31
Provisions i3 1,094.14 1,093,87
Total Current Liabilities 1,301.76 1,281.63
Total Equity and Liabilities 9,060.91 9,197.43
Sighificant Accounting Policies 1
Accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Manubhai & Shah LLP For & On behall of Lhe Board of Directoss of
Chartered Accountants P
ICAl Firm Registration No. 106042 W/W100136 )
{K. C. Patel) i itin R.
Partner i ) /E/
Membership No.30083 DIN: 000438324 0) ) é 1 00466330
ot
2 M
/ NP
‘/{ ardik Modi) {Warun Mehta}
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. - F9193 LT
Ty 1
A0 T :
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad M) &,
Date: May 13, 2019 Date: May 13, 2019 N 7 A
4" -
Ef;, AHMEDABAD S :
~
‘ord




Biapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2019

{INR In Millton except EPS)

Year Ended March | Year Ended March
Partiewlars Note No, 81, 2019 31, 2018
{INR In MHlion)} {INR in Milllon)
I Revenue From Operatlons 17 1,443.75 1,286.95
fl Other Income 18 30.16 25,70
1 Total income {I+1) 1,473,91 1,312.69
EXPENSES
Construction Expenses 210,58 65.72
Operating Expenses 19 193,16 258.75
Employee Benefits Expenses 20 33.81 29.80
Finance Cost 21 747.19 974.45
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 284 376.11 346.54
Other Expenses 22 25,77 30,98
v Total Expenses 1,586.62 1,706.24
v Loss For the year {Ill - {v} {122.71) (393,55}
Other Comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent period
Remeasurement {losses)/ gain on defined benefit plan 26 {0.06) {0.39)
Vi Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year {0.06) (0.39)
vii Total Comprehensive income for the period, net of tax
(V+v) {112.77) (393.94)
Earning Per Share
{Nominal Value of share INR 10/-)
Basic {1.12) (3.90)
Diluted {1.12) {(3.90)
Significant Accounting Policies 1

Accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Manubhai & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAT Firm Reglstration No. 106011W/W100136

SSYWIY|

{K. C. Patel)
Partner
Membership No.30083

{VasiétHa Patél)

Managing Director

DIN: 00048324 (z
o

-?‘/\/\'0

Hardik Modi}
Company Secretary
M. No. - F9193

Place: Ahmedabad
bate: May 13, 2019

Ptace: Ahmedabad
Date: May 13, 2019

For & On behalf of the Doard of Directors of
Bijapyt-Hungund Tollway Private Limited

~

Vs
4
4
(NitirfR. Patel}
‘Spléctor

DIN: 00466330

Yorry

{varun Mehta)
Chief Financial Ofticer

e




Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars

{A) Cash flows from Operating activities

{B)

(<

(Loss) Before Tax

Adjustments for:

Depreclation and amortisation

Major Maintenance Expense

Amortization of Option Premium

Proviston of Gratuity

Unwinding of discount on provision

Amortization of processing fee

Finance Costs

Galn on derivative contract

Unreallzed Gain on Mutual Fund

Gain on sale of Units of Mutual fund Investments (net}
Cash generated before Effect of Working capital
Adjustments for:

{Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Recaivables
{Increase)/Decrease in other current financial asset
(Increase}/Decrease in current asset
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables
(Decrease}/Increase in Other financial liabilities
{Decrease)/Increase in current Hability
{Decrease}/Increase in short-term provisions

Cash generated from Operating Activity

(+)/{-) : Tax Paid{Net of Refund}

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash Flows from investing activities

Redemption of units of Mutual Funds

Purchase of units of Mutual Funds

Purchase of Praperty, plant and equipments and Intangible Assets
Net cash flow from/( used in} investing activities
Cash Flows from financing activities

Disbursements of long term borrowings

Repayment of subordinate debts

Repayment of long term borrowings

Interest and other Finance cost paid

Net cash from/{used in} financing activities

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

(A}

(B)

(c
{ A+B+C)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR in Miilion) {INR in Mllilon)

{112.71) (393.55)
376.11 346.54
124.58 196.11

- 33.68

0.72 0.70

- 81.92

6.32 36.43
740.87 730,66

- 91.76
(18,08) {9.69)
{10.43) (15.93)
1,107.38 1,098.63
{0.03) 209.73
0.19 (0.16)
{6.31) 24.05
{24.68) (94.53)
(23.73) 28.72
25.05 (39.56)
(36.50) 40.53
0.22 (12.71)
1,041.55 1,254.70
(4.46) (0.98)
1,037.13 1,253.72
1,430.38 1,529.09
{1,617.45) (1,328.50)
(2.03) (1.18)
{189.10) 199.41
1,450.00 2,400.00
- (290.00)
{1,570.43) {2,771.46)

(740.87) (771.70)

(861.30) (1,433.16)
(13.27) 19.97
45.54 25.57
32.27 45.54

R DA
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BHapur-Hunjund Tollway Private Limited
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

Equity Shave Copital

Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 ecach Issued, subscribed and fully pald No of Shares
AUty She vE (INR i Million)
As at April 1, 2018 100960000 E009.60
As at March 31, 2019 1006960000 1009.60
Gther Gquity
Equity Component of Total other equlty

Retalned Earning Compound Flnancial

attrlbutable to equity

Particulars instrument {Sub holders of the
erdinate Debt)* Company
INR {n Milion INR in Million INR In Million
As at April 1, 2017 {1,389.61) 1,096.00 {293.61}
(Loss) for the year (393.55) - {393.55)
Change during the year {290.00) (290.00)
Other comprehensive income for the year (0.39) - {0.39)
As at March 31, 2018 {1,783.55} B06.00 {9772.55)
As at Aprli 1, 2018 {1,783.55) 806.00 {977.55}
{Loss) for the year / Change for the year {112.71) {112.71}
Other comprehensive income for the year {0.06) - {0.06)
As at March 31, 2019 (1,896.32}) 806.00 (1,090.32)
*Note:

The Project of the Company has been funded threugh sub ordinate deht from the Sponsors in accordance with Sponsor Support and
Equity Contributlon Agreement / Sponsor Undertaking. As per Common loan Agreement, such sub ordinate debts are considered as
sponsot's centribution to ensure Promotors commitment for the project. Sub-ordinate debt is interest free and shall be repayable at the

end of the concession period or earfier at the option of the company,

On compietion of refinancing of the project cost, the company had surplus funds available due to reduction In requirement of debt servie
reserve. Pursuant to Common Loan Agreement, Company may repay the sub-debt for which lender's approvat is not required.

Accordingly, excess amount of sub debt has been repaid during the year.

Accompanying nntes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Manubhai & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 106041W/W100136
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Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31,2019

A, Company information:

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited ("the Company®) is a private limited company domiciled in
[ndia and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1t is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited which is listed on two recognized stock exchanges in India.
The registered office of the company is located at Ellishridge, Ahmedabad — 380 006.

The Company was incorporated as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) in February 2010, for the purpose
of four laning of Bijapur-Hungund section of NH-13 from KM 102 to KM 202 in the state of Karnataka
on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer ("DBFOT") basis. The Company has entered into
Concession Agreement with National Highways Authority of india {NHAI) with a Concession Period of
20 years including construction period of 910 days. Further, the Company has received an exiension
of 23.27 days from NHAI for force majeure event and accordingly the Company shall be entitled to
all the rights and obligations of the agreement for the extended concession period. w.e.f 5th
September 2010. The Company had received provisional completion certificate dated 9th April 2012
from NHAL The tol collection had commenced from May 2012,

The financial statements were autharized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors
on May 14, 2019

B. Basis of preparation and presentation of financial stotement:

(a) Compliance with IND AS:
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of
the Companies {indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The company has applied the applicable standards and/or amendments to existing standards
effective from April 1, 2018 in the preparation and presentation of financial statements for
the year ending on March 31, 2019,

Most of the amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

(b) Basis of Presentation:
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in Equity are
prepared and presented in the format prescribed in Schedule it to the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”). The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared and presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.

The financial statements are presented in INR, which is the functional currency and all
values are rounded to the nearest million {INR 000,000}, except when otherwise indicated.

{c) Basis of Measurement;




Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31,2019

financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding

financial instruments).

{d) Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of these financial statements is in conformity with IND AS which reguires
the management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities ({including contingent liabilities}, income and expenses.  The
Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements
are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ due to these estimates and the
differences between the actual resulis and the estimates are recognised in the periods in
which the results are known / materialize. Estimates include the useful lives of property
plant and equipment and intangible fixed assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances,
future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, provisions for major maintenance
expenses, Tair value measurement ete, Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the company in preparing its financial
statements:

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

sexpected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
sexpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

scash or cash equivalent unless restricted trom being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve maonths after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

= it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

eit is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the I'iability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liahilities.
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Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31,2019

Operating cycle
The Operating cycle is the time hetween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its normal operating

cycle.
Foreign Currencies

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the
date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement of such
transaction and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of long-term foreign
currency monetary items related to acquisition of a fixed asset are capitalized and depreciated over

the remaining useful life of the asset.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Revenue Recognition

The company primarily derives revenue in terms of the Appendix D to ind AS 115 which covers
specific aspects related to the Service Concession Agreements, The company follows Intangible
Asset model preseribed in the Appendix.

Effective Aprif 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of
April 1, 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have

hot been retrospectively adjusted.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised service to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services or
goods. Revenue, primarily, is measured based on the transaction price {realization of toll receipts),
which is the consideration for usage of the toll roads. Since the company does not provide any other
services, the disaggregation of revenues is not disclosed.

{i) Toll collection income
Toll collection from users of the infrastructure facility constructed by the Company under the
Service Concession Arrangement is recognised in the period of collection which generallv
ceincide as and when the traffic passes through toll — plazas. ‘
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Notes to Financlal statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

{if)

(iii)

{iv)

{v)

{vi)

Gain or loss on sale of Mutuail Fund

Gain or Loss on sale of mutual fund 1s recorded on transfer of tide from the Company, and is
determined as the difference between the sale price and carrying value of mutual funcd anc
other incidental expenses.

Dividend
Income from dividend on investments is accrued in the year in which it is declared, whereby
right Lo receive is established.

Interest

Interest income is recoghised using effective interest method. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit
tosses.

Government Grants

Government Grants are recognized where there is réasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognized as income on systematic basis over the periods that the related
cost, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to asset,
it is as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Other Income
Other items of income are recognised as and when the right to receive arises.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any. Such cost comprise the purchase price, borrowing costs if the recognition
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its
intended use. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at

intervals, the company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

All other expenses on existing property plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during

which such expenses are incurred.
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Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when noe future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset {calculated as the difference hetween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on the written down value method basis
over useful lives of the assels as prescribed under Part C of Schedule { ta the Companies Act, 2013,
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are
accounted for as separate items {Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or
over the remaining useful life of the principal assets whichever is less.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of

use,.

The residual value, useful life and method of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are
reviewed at each financiat year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

intangible assets:
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite,

intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
te modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are ireated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on'intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. '

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. '
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Notes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asse!l are mcasurei as lhe (laﬂe rence
hetween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Toll collection right arising from service concession arrangement
The Company builds infrastructure assets under public-to-private Concession Arrangements which it
operates and maintains for periods specified in the Concession Arrangements.

Under the Concession Agreaments, where the Company has received the right to charge users of the
public service, such rights are recognised and classified as “Intangible Assets” in accordance with
Appendix D and E to Ind AS 115, Such right is not an unconditional right to receive consideration
because the amounis are contingent to the extent that the public uses the service and thus are
recognised and classified as intangible assets. Such an intangible asset is recognised by the Company
at cost {which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the construction
services delivered) and is capitalized when the project is complete in all respects and when the
company receives the completion certificate from the authority as specified in the Concession
Agreement. The economics of the project is for the entire length of the road / infrastructure as per
the bidding submitted.

Amortization

The intangible assets which are recognised in the form of Toll right to charge users of the
infrastructure asset are amortized by taking proportionate of actual revenue received for the year
over Total Projected Revenue from project to Cost of Intangible assets i.e. proportionate of actual
revenue earned for the year over Total Projected Revenue from the Intangible assets expected to be
earned over the balance concession period as estimated by the management.,

As required, total Projected Revenue is reviewed by the management at the end of the each
financial year and accordingly, the total projected revenue is adjusted to reflect any changes in the
estimates which lead to the actual collection at the end of the concession period.

Impairment - Non-financial assets _

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may he
impaired. If any indication exists the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s {CGU) fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverabie amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. '
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Notes to Financial statement for the year ended M'arch 31, 2019

In assassing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are descounwd ko thon pmwnl \mlutn sing
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money a ret the
risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taleen into
account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is

used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts calculation. These
budgets and forecasts calculations generally covering a period of the concession agreements using
long terms growth rates applied to future cash flows.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or
al the CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be

impaired.

Investment Property

Investment Property is measured initially at cost including related transaction costs.Such cost
comprises the purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met.All day-to-day repair
and maintenance expenditure are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during
which such expenses are incurred.,

An investment property is derecognised on disposal or on permanently withdrawal from use or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sate are capitalized
as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they

~occur. Borrowing cost consist of interest and other costs that company incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds. tnvestment income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

Leases ‘

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys
a right to use the asset or assets, even if that nght is not explicitly specified in an arrangement
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Company as lessee

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance tease. Operating lease payments are recognised as
an operating expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-tine basis over the lease term
except the case where incremental lease reflects inflationary effect and lease expense is accounted
in such case by actual rent for the period.

1.10 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets _
Al financial assels are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss are
added to the fair value on initlal recognition. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Company commits o
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsegquent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {Fv10Cl)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Fmanmal assets at amortized cost :

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose ob}edt\m
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value and bank overdrafts. '

Financial assets at fair value through.other comprehensive income:

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it'is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, andthe contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on speciﬂ_ed dates to cash

‘flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount

outstandlng Financial assets inciuded within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
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each reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are reu)[,m?ed in the other mmpmhvn,wo
income (OCI.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets, Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI is classified as at FVTPL.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is de-recognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assel expire or the Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither transterred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

when the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recoghize the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. in that case, the Company
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Company could be required to repay,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss {ECL) model for the financial
assets. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured af lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses {or reversal} that is required to

adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is

recognized.as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss,

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

The Company'’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. ' '

s "’.’25‘*”“’"-.‘,




_C)

Bijapur-Hungund Tollway Private Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. All fmanual 1|dbl|l1|(=s are recognised
initiatly at fair value and, in the case of loan and borrowings and payable, net of directly attriburable
transaction costs,

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabitities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For
liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are
recognized in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. iHowever, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of
such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
horrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability {or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance sheet when, and

“only when, it is extmgwshed i.e. when the obllgatlon specified in the contract is discharged or

cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial Iiébility is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially -
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or.
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrymg amounts |s recognised in the statement of profit or

1oss.

Offsetting of financial instruments .
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is ropolted in 1he balanw
sheet IF the Company currently has enforceable legal right to offset the recognised ameunts and
there is an intention to seltfe on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabililies
simultaneously.

Fair Value Measurement
The company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and Investment in Mutual Fund at
fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would he received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an
orderly transaction between market parlicipants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

In the principal market for the asset or fiability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liahility, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and bhest use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. ‘

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. '

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level |nput that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Levei 3 - Valuation technigues for whlch the Iowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

AT,
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring bm,ls the
company determines whether transfers have occurred belween levels in the hierarchy hy re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has cdetermined classes of assets arul
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting poticy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes.

° Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
. Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

. Financial instruments {including those carried at amortized cost)

Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period are classified as short term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages,
honus, short term compensation etc. and the same are recognized as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related services. - o

b) Pos.t-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan

The Company’s approved provident fund scheme is defined contribution plans. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution paid/payable under such schemes. The contribution -
paid/payable under the schemes is 'recognised_duri_ng the pefiod in which the employee renders the

related service,
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i) Defined benefit plan

The employee’s gratuity fund scheme is Company’s defined benelit plans. The present value of the
obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair
value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined henefit plans, to
recognise the obligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCl in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit
and Loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated hy applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense
in the Statement of profit and loss:

. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

. Net interest expense or income

Income tax
income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with Income tax 1961. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantiveiy enacted at the reporting
date. '

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity}). Current income tax are recognised in

- correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

.Deferred Tax

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in

~ which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where

appropriate.
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Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach, Dofumd tax is recognized i on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except when the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabie profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused
tax losses and carry forward of unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which those temporary differences, losses and tax credit can be ufilized
except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that affects neither the accounting profit hor
taxable profit or foss.

As per provision of Income tax Act 1961, the Company is eligible for a tax holiday under section 80IA
for a block of 10 consecutive assessment year out of 20 year beginning of toll operation. The current
year is fourth year of company’s operation and it propose to start claiming tax holiday during the
current year. No deferred tax (assets or liabilities) is recognized in respect of temporary difference
which reverse during tax holiday period, to the extent such gross total income is subject to the
deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing difference which is reverse
after the tax holiday period is recognised in the year in which the timing difference orginate.
However, the company restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset 1o
be utilized. For recognition of deferred tax, the timing difference which orginate first are considered
to reverse first,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assetls are reviewed at eath reporting date and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow ali or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. ‘
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rules and tax laws that
~ have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. '

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, where company has a legaily enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. ' | - '
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Notes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

Provisions

General

Provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result
of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or toss net of

any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is

recognised as a finance cost,

Contractual obligation Lo restore the infrastructure to a specified level of serviceahility

The Company has contractual obligations to maintain the road to a specified level of serviceability or
restore the road to a specified condition before it is handed over to the grantor of the Concession
Agreements. Such obligations are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. The timing and amount of such cost are
estimated and determined by estimated cash flows, expected to be incurred in the year of overlay.
The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-ltax rate that reflects the risks specific to such
obligation. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement
of profit and foss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of such obligation are reviewed
annually and adjusted as approptiate. '

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obiigation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probahle that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liahility also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot b(-“é
measured reliably, The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements. |

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed under contihg_ent liabilities,

Claims made by the company are recognised as and when the same is approved by the respective
authorities with whom the claim is lodged. '

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only be occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company. The company does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses
its existence in the financial statements |
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1.16 Earnings/(Loss) per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / {loss} Tor the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders by the welghted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares,

1,17 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

1.18 Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at
the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial
statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only
disclosed.

1.20 A.} Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the accompanying disclosure, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

(i) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liahilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Coempany based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(i) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
he measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values, Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
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Changes in assumptions aboutl these factors could affect Lhe reporiod fair value of fmanual
instruments,

(iti)  Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the credits can be utilised. Significant management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

{iv) impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its Tair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data for similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The wvalue in use
calculation is hased on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget generally covering
a period of the concession agreements using long terms growth rates and do not include
restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments
that will enhance the asset’s performance being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the
discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth
rate used for extrapolation purposes.

{v) Property, plant and equipment

Refer Note 3.4 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of
Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.

(vi} Intangible Assets

The intangible assets which are recognized in the form of Toll right to charge users of the
infrastructure asset are amortized by taking proportionate of actual revenue received for the year
over Total Projected Revenue from project to Cost of Intangible assets. The estimation of total
projection revenue requires significant assumption about expected growth rate and traffic
“projection for future. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

{vii)  Provision for periodical Major Maintenance

Provision for periodical Major Maintenance obligations are measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure that would be required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. The timing
and amount of such cost are estimated and determmed by estimated cash flows, expected to be
mcurred in the year of overlay All assumptlons are revuewed at each reporting date.

g
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B.) Accounting Pronouncement Issued but not effective:

(i) ind AS 116 "Leases”
On March 30 ,2019,Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS116,Leases.Ind AS116 will
replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets
out the principles for the recognition , measurement ,presentation and disclosure of leases for both
parties to a contract i.e, the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. '

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019
however the effect on adoption will not have any impact on financial statement.

(ii) Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits" (Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement)
The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement oceurs, it is mandatory
that the current service cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are
determined using the assumptions used for the re-measurement,
In addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling. The Company does not expect this
amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.

(iii) Ind AS 23 "Borrowing Costs"
The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an Company
horrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. The Company
does not expect any impact from this amendment.
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2

Notes:
]

Note:

Properly, Mant and Equipments

[IN# in Milion)

Partleulass BrlkHing - Fueniture Vehices Conmputers i Oiflce Plant & Total
Borewell Egulpments | Machbery -

Cat
s ol Aprii 01,2007 .00 0.6 .75 013 064 . 5,08
Adddilien .10 1.00 . 1.18
Dlsposal - - - -
As at March 31,2018 .09 .46 3.75 0,23 174 - 6.27
Additlon - 0,17 1.84 2.03
Disposat - - - - - - -
As ot Mareh 31,2019 0.69 046 | 375 0.23 1,91 1,85 828
Accumuiated Depreciation
As ot April 01,2017 0.06 0.22 1,89 0.09 0.37 - 2.03
Beprociation lor the year 0.01 0.07 0.59 0.04 029 . 0.99
Dispesal . . . . . -
As at March 31,2018 0,07 0L20 248 0.13 0.66 - 3.62
Depreclation for the year 1L.01 0.05 (130 0.05 0.5¢ 0.1% 145
Disposal - - - - - -
As at March 31,2019 0.08 0.33 287 0,18 1.16 .15 a7
Net Block ’
As al April 03,2037 003 0,24 186 0.04 0.28
As al March 31,2018 0.01 0.8 1.2% 0.10 108 o 265
As al Mirch 31,2019 0.01 0.13 0.88 0.05 0,14 1.71 3.52

The apggregate depreciation has heen included under depreciation and amortlisation expense in Aihe Statemaent of Profit and Loss.

Fropery Plant and Eguipments have been hypothecaled against Secured horrowngs in order to fulfill the collataral requirement Tor the Lenders.

Investment Property

INR Ins Milliond

particulars Land Total
Cost

As at April 01,2017 Q.91 0.94
Addition B -
Deduclion - -
As at March 31,2018 0.94 0.94
Addition - -
Deduction - -
As at March 31,2019 0.94 0.94
Net Book Amount - -
As at April 01,2017 0.91 0.94
As al March 31,2018 0.94 0.94
As at March 31,2019 0.94 0.94

There is no income arising from above investment properties, Further, the company has not incurred any expenditure for above properties,

The above land which is situated at tMehsana District, Guiarat has heen morlgaged against Secured borrowings {refer note 12) in order to fulfiit the

coliateral reguirement of the Lenders,

The Company has no contractual obdigations to purchase, consiruct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and
enhancements.
The fair value disclosure for investment property is not preseated as the property is specifically acquired for offering as security for orrowicgs and
based on the information available with the management that there are no material development in the area where fand is siluated and accnrdlngly,
they believe that there is no material dlfference in fair value and carrying velue of propertv -
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Nete;

Intanglble Assots @
{INIUin Miltlon)

Farticalirs Tell Itl';::::‘;mm (s‘:;:i::‘ll‘: Total

Cost

AS ol Aprit 01,2017 10,311.89 .19 10,3158
Addlition . - .
Farelgn Exchange Diference 2025 - 23,25
Disposid . . .
As at Marels 31,2018 10,330.14 0.19 10,338.33
Addition - . -
Forelgn Exchange Diference - - -
Bisposal - - -
As at March 31,2019 10,338.14 019 | 10,338.33
Accumulated Amortization - - -
As al Aprit 01,2017 1,230,058 .44 1,230.19
Charge for the Year 345,51 0.03 345,55
Disposal - - -
As at March 31,2018 1,575.56 0.17 1,575,19
Charge lor the Year 374,96 . 3706
Disposal - - .
As al March 31,2019 1,950L.52 (L18 1,950.70
Net Boolc Amount - - -
As at Aprit 01,2017 9,084.84 .05 9,084.80
As at March 33,2018 B,162.58 .02 §,762.60
As al March 31,2019 8,387.62 0.01#* B,387.63

T INGR I Millien 0.01 represents amsount below rounding-ofl nonns atdopted By e Company i.e INR 9 458.25

Toll collecton rights of Teur Taning of Bijapur-Hungund section of NE-13 waere capilalised when the project was contplete Inall raspects and when the
Company received the completion cerlficate from the authority os specilled n the Concession Agreement and not on completion of component
Dasis as he intended purgose of the project Is to have the complete length of the road avatlable for use. Refer note 36 for desail additional disclosure
under Service Concession Arrangement.

The aggregate amorlisation has been included under depreciation and amorlisallon expense i the Statement of Proffl and Loss,

Tolf collection right has been hypothecated against Non-current borrowings in order 10 fulfilh 1he collateral requirement of the Lenders,

The company has recejved extension of 23.27 days in concession period on account of force majeure event. Accordingly, the remaining amortisation
period for the Toll collection rights at the end of the reporting periad is 11.49 years {March 31, 2018: 12.43 years).
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4§ Other Flnancal Assots

Non Curresr Financial Assels
Deposity

Current Financial Assots
Raceivable From NHAI

Advance 1o Employee
ETC/MSWIPE Revenue Recolvable

-

March 31, 2019
{INIt i Milllon)

March 31, 2018
{INR In Million}

0.06 0.03

Total 0.06 0.03
26,54 22,57

.14 0,19

3.29 0.8

Total 29.97 23,66

Pursuant to demonetisation, concessioning authorities had announced suspension of Wl collecton at ail roads from November 05, 2016 until Deceamber

2, 2016, Based on subsequent noUfication and provisions of concession agreement with the relevant authoritles, the Company has clatmed and recognised
revenua of INR 70.14 Millkons during the year, As at March 21, 2019, the company has recelved Rs. 54,24 million against such clalm from NHAL and

company has written off 1,17 millton on account of such elalm,

e

Falr value disclosures for financlal sssets are glven in Note 34

-]

Other Assets

Non Current Assots
Advance Tax and Tax Credits Receivable

Current Asscts

Prepaid Expenses

Advances Lo related parties (refer nole 28)
Unbifled Revenue

Inpat Tax Credits Receivable

-~

Investments

Unquoted Investments

March 31, 2019
{INR In Miltlon)

March 31, 2018
{INR in Million)

8.51 4.08

Total 8.54 4.08
.84 4.00

116.80 490.00

1.0% 5.58

216 0.57

Total 124,81 100,13

March 31, 2019
(INR In Millior)

March 31, 2018
{INR in Millien)

invesiments in Mutual Funds carried at fair value through profit or loss ] A473.17 257.61
Total 473.17 257.61
173.17 257.61

Aggregate amount of Unquoled Investinents
Fair value disctosures for financial assets are given In Note 34,

The batances held in iquid mutual funds as at March 31,2019 are as follows:

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Particulars Units (INR in Million} Units {INR in Millien)
HDFC Mutual Fund-Cash Management -Treasury-Growth 70,72,686,15 276,72 48,88,254.59 178.86
HDFC Mutual Fund-Uttra Short Term fund- Reguias Growth 187,86,083.80 19645 : - -
Axis Liquid Fund-Growth Plan - - 10,643.25 20.44
Reliance Liguid Fund- Cash Plan-Growth Option - - 17,225.86 46,42
Reliance Liguid Fund- Cash Plan-Direct Growth Option - - 4,234.76 11.89
Total 473,17 257.61
8 Trade Receivables
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR in million) {INR in Million)
Trade Receivables considered good - Secured - -
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured B 0.1%
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
Trade Receivabies - credit impaired - -
Totail .- 0.19
9 Cash and Cash Equivalents
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR in Miltion) {INR in Million)
Cash en Hand 669 3.94
Balance with Banks
- In Current Accounts 25.58 41.60
Total 32.27 45.54

Note : Balance with bank includes i)alante of INR 18,55 million {March 3 ggi

borrowings with the lenders.

é\\& }-h
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w‘ion) lying in the Escrow Accounts, as per terms of
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0 Eyuity Share Capital March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
No, of shares  {INR In Million}  No. of shares {tNR In Million)

Authorized Share Capital

Eequity Shares of Rs, 10 each 10,10,00,000 1010.00 10,10,00,000 10000
10,10,00,000  1,010.00  10,10,00,000 1,010.00

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up

Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 10,09,60,000 1009,60 10,09,60,000 100960
10,09,60,000 1,000.60  10,09,60,000 1,000.60

(%} Reconcillation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

No, of shares  (INRin Million}  No. of shares  (INR Inh Million)
At the heginning of the year 10,09,60,000 1009.60 10,09,60,000 1009.60
Add: Issue during the year - - .
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,09,60,000 1,009.60 10,09,60000  1,009.60

{b) Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares:
The Company has one class of shares referred Lo as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 each. Each shareholder is entitled to one vole per
share held. In the event of liguidation, the equity shareholders are eligthle to receive the residual assets of the Company after distribution of ali
preferential amounts, In proportion to thelr sharehotding.

{¢) Share held by holding Company:
Out of issued, subseribed and paid up equity capital 77,739,200 shares {March 31, 2018:77,739,200 shares} are heid by Sadbhav Infrastructure

Project Limited - Hotding Compay & #s nominees. This includes 100 shares (Previous Year 100 Shares) held by Sadbhav Enginecting Limited-

Ultimate Holding Company, on behalf of Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited which Is the benefical owner.

{} Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the company

Particulars ) March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
No. of shares % of No. of shares % of
shareholding shareholding
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited and its nominees 7,77,39,200 T7% 7,77,39,200 1%
Montecario Limnited 2,32,20,800 - 23% 2,32,20,800 23%
Total 10,09,60,000 100 14,09,60,000 100

s per the records of the company, including its registers of shareholders/member and other declaration received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents hoth legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

1 Other Equity : R : March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
: {INR in Million)  {INR in Million}

Equity Component of Compound Financial Instrument - Sub Crdinate debts {refer note below)

Balance as per last financtal statement o _ : : S 806.00 1,096.00
Less: Repaid-during the year : o S ' L ‘ - {290.00)

Balancé at the end of the year : o . R T - B060D 806,00

{Deficit) in statement of profit and loss _ _ o - o . .
Balance as per last financial s?atement ' : o _ ' ‘ (1,783.55)  {1,389.61)

Add: loss for the year S ' . L S {112.71) : {393.55)
Add / {lLess): OCl for the year : ; S _ R - (0.06) {0.39)
Ralance at the end of the year o : o : C (1,896.32) {1,783.55)
' (1,090.32) (977.55)

Note

T he P!OJECt of the Company has been funded through sub ordinate debt from th /Sponsors in accordance wnh Sponsor Sup b'%gquity

earlier at the option of the company.
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12 Non-Carrent Borrowings

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Secured* {INR in Milllen)  {INR in Milllon}
Non Converlible Dehentures 3,823.61 2,438.61
Term Loans from Banks
“Rupee Term toans 3,666.43 5,151.81
378,58 392,32
Gverdsafl from bank - Secured(As 2 sublimit of Rupee Term Loan) i
Totat : 7,868.62 7,982.74
Less: Current maturities*
Secured
Non Convartible Debentures 100.72 37.81
Ferny Loans from Banks
-Rupee Term Loans 51.35 G098
. . . 4.66 2.88
Overdrafl from bank - Secured{As a sublimil of Rupee Term Loan)
Total 156.73 101.67
Total Non Current Borrowling 7,711.89 7,881.07

* Includes the effect of Lransaction cost pald on uplront basis.

(i

-3

Securlty detalls:

The details of Security in respect of Non Convertible Debentures (T1 NCE and T2 NED), Indian Rupee Term
loans (T1 Facility and T2 Faclfily} , overdrall and Foreign Currency loans are as under:

1 first ranking pari passu charge, by way of mortagage of following assets of the company:-

(a) ali the Company's movable assets, including current and non-current assets, movahle plant and machinery,
machinery spares, toofs and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all movable assets, both present and
future save and excepl the Project Assets;

{b) all bank accounts of the Company, including without limitation, the Escrow Accounl, Lhe Fscrow Sub-Accounts
{or any account in substilittion Lhereof) and any other bank accounts, all funds from time to time deposited
therein and aft permitted investments or other securities representing all amounts credited thereto or lying to
the credit thereof;

{¢) all present and future tangible and intangible assets of the Company including but not limited to goodwill,
undertaking of the Company, uncalled capital, trademarks, patents, present and future, however shali exciude
the Project Assets;

{d} ail present and future current assels, operating cash flows, receivables, commissions, revenues of whatsoever
nature and whenever arising but exclude Projact Assets;

(e) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Company in the Project
Documents, all as amended, varied or supplemented from time to time;

- {f} the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Company in any Clearances procured
in respect of the Project; )

(g} all the right, title, interest, henefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Company in any latter of cradit,
guarantee including contraclor guarantees and liguidated damages and performance bond provided by any
party to the Project Docurnents including on the termination payments arising from the Concession
all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and dermands whatsoever of the Company under afl Insurance
Conlracts including, in respect ol the insurance proceeds arising thereunder;

(h

2 pledge of equity shares held by Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited and Montecarlo Limited aggregating to
51% of the paid up and voting equity share capital of the Company as initial pledge; the initial pledge shall he
reduced to 30% on execution of the su bstitutio_n agreegment; '

(i) Terms of Repayment of Debentures & Loans:

{a) Non Convertible Debentures: .
T1-The redemption of debenture is to be made in 148 monthly instaliments on the last day of each month,
which has commenced from 31 May, 2016. The T1 NCD includes 9,993 NCDs of India Infradebt Limited &
14,9590 NCDs of L&Tinfra Debt Fund Limited, haviing face value of iNR 1,00,000/- each carry interest of 9.40 %
percent as on March 31, 201S.

T .
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(dd}
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T2 -The redemption of debenture §s 1o be made I 124 monthly installments on the last day of cach imonth,
which s commenced from 33 May, 2018, The 12 NCD includes 14,500 NCDS of India Infradebt timiled
Baviing face value of INR 1,00,000/- each carry interest of 9.10 % percent &s on March 31, 2019,

Indian Rupae Term Loans Frony Banks:
T1 Factlity:

Tha Principal Amounts of the Lean 1o each of the Lenders is repayable In unequal 161 monthly instaliments on

the last day of cach month , comimencing from 31 May, 2016

T2 Facility:

The principal amounts of the toan to lenders Is repayable in unequat 150 monthly Installments on the last day

of cach month, commencing from 31 October, 2017,

Overdmft from Bank:

The Principat Amount of the overdralt is repayable in unequal 249 monthly installments on the last day of

each manth, which has commenced lrom 3151 May, 2016,

Provislons

Non Current
For Employees Benelits

For Perindical Major Mainlenance Expense

For Periodic Major Maintenance Expense

For Employes Benefils

Trade Payable

Trade Payable (refer nole 31)
-Duies to Micro & small enterprises

. -Dues to other

oy
w
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-Dues Lo refated parties

Other Financial Liabilities

Currant

Currenl Maturities of Long Term Debis
Employec emoluments payable
Retention Money

Others

Othor Current Liabilities

Advance Received from Client
Statutory dues
Unearned Revenue

March 31, 2019
(INR tr Million)

March 31, 2018
{INR in MiHlion)

3.30 2.68
124.55
Total 127.98 2.68
1,093.20 1,003.20
0.94 0.67
Total 1,004,14 1,003.87

March 31, 2019
{INR in Milfion)

March 31, 2018
(INR in Miilion)

37.74

13.04°
2.09 1.12
Total 15.14 38.87
156.73 101.67
2,52 2.02
26.43 1.88
. 0.01 0.01
Total 185.69 105,58

Mareh 31, 2019
-(INR in Million)

Maveh 31, 2018
{INR in Milion}

3.24 -40.07

3.14 2.88
. £.41 0.36
. Total 6.79

43.31




17 Revenue From Operations

17.1

17.2

17.3

Revenue from Toll Collection
Construction Revenue
Other Operating Revenue

Total

Disaggregation of Revenue

Revenuea from Operation & Maintenance Services
Revenua from Construction Services
DOther Dperating Revenue

Changes in amount of Contract Liahilities are as follows:

Balance at the Beglnning of the Year

Revenue recognised that was included in the upearned and deferred
revenue at the beginning of the year

Increase cdue to Invoicing during the year, excluding amounts
recognised as revenue during the year

Balance at the End of the Year

Changes in amount of Contract Assets are as follows:
Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Amount transferred to trade receviables

Contract Assets recognised during the year

Balance at the End of the Year

Performance obligation:

March 31, 2019
{INR in Million)

March 31, 2018
{INR tn MillTon)

1,223.7%
218.99
101

1,215.26
70.50
1.23

1,443.75

1,286.99

information about the company's performance obligation is summarised as below;

Operation & Maintenance Services

March 31, 2019
INR v MiEHTon

1,223.75
218,99
1.01

1,443,75

March 31, 2019
INR in Million

40.44

-40.44

3.65

365

March 31, 2019
INR in Milllon

5.58
(4.81)
(.24

1.01

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as each toll road-user simultaneously receives and
consumas the benefits provided by the Company. However, given the short time period over which the
company provides road operating services to each road user {i.e. the duration of the time it takes the road
user to travei the length of the toil road), the Company recognises toll revenue when it collects the tolls.

Construction Services

The performance obligation is satisfied over tima as the assets is under control of concessioner (National
Highway Authority of India) and they simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company. The Company received progressive payment toward provision of construction services. '

The transaction price allocated to the remammg performance Ob|lga1.|0ﬂ5 (unsatlsﬂed or partiaily unsatlsfled)

as at March 31, 2019 are as follows:

Within one year
Morethan one year

- March 31, 2019

INR in Million

50.56




17.31 Reconclllation of the amount of revenue recorded i statement of Profit & loss is nol required as there are no

adjustments te the contracted price.

18 Other Income

March 31, 2019
{INR in Million}

March 31, 2018
(INR in Million)

Net Gain or Loss on financial assets measured at FYTPL

Net Gain on Sale of Mutuad Funds 28.52 26,62
Interest on income tax refund - 0.08
Insurance Claim Receivet 1.64 -
Miscellaneous Income
Othars® 0.00 -
Total 30.16 25.70

FINR in Million 0.00 represents INR 4,506 which Is below rounding-off nerms adopted hy the Company

19 Operating Cxpenses

March 31,2019  March 31, 2018

(INRin Mitlion)  {INR in Mitlion)

Major Maintenance Expense 124,58 196.1.0.
Road and Toll Plaza Operation and Maintenance Expense 46.04 43.71
Power and Fuel 8.50 7.17
Security Expenses 10.73 8.09
Vehicle Expenses 3.31 3.67
~ Total 193.16 258.75

20 Employee Benefits Expenses

March 31, 2019
{INR in Million}

March 31, 2018
{INR in Million)

Salaries, Wages and other allowances _ 29.17 25.74
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 3.37 281
Staff welfare expenses : : 1.27 1.25

' Total 33.81 29.80




21 Finance Cost

March 31, 2019
{INR In Milllon)

March 31, 2018
{INR In Million)

Interest Expenses on Financlal laibllitles measured at Amortised Cost

Rupee Term Loans

Foreipn Currency Term Loan
Non Convertible Debentures

Overdralt

Amortisation of Processing Fees

Unwinding of discount on provision

Other Borrowing cost

Net loss on Derivative Contracts
Bank Charges and Agency Fees

Dption premiuim

22 Other Expenses

360.31 363,52
- 80.71
344.01 2331.40
35,70 a0.24
6.32 36,43
716,35 752.29
83.92

- 91.76
0.85 14.80

“ 33.68
(.85 140.24
Total 747.19 974.45

March 31, 2019
{INR in Million}

March 31, 2018
{INR in MiHion)

Rent : : 1,51 1.29
Rates & Taxes : 0.07 0.05
Repairs and Maintenance ) . A.52 5,09
Insurance : 4.53 -4.50
Stamp duty and filing fees 0.01 3.22
Legal and Professional fees ' 10.69 13.86
Auditors' remuneration : 0.32 0.31
Directors' Sitting Fees 0.24 0.20
Cash collection Chargas 1.62 1.35
Sundry balances written off* o o 1.16 -
Miscellaneotis expenses 1.10 111
) Total 25.77 30.98

*Pursuant to demonetisation, concessioning authorities had announced suspension of toll coliection at all

roads from November 09, 2016 until December 2, 2016, Based an subsequent notification and provisions of

concession agreement with the relevant authorities, the Company has claimed and recognised revenue of INR

70.14 Millions during the year. As at March 31, 2019, the company has received Rs. 54.74 million against such
+ . claim from NHAl and company has written off 1.17 millions on account of such cfaim. ' '

- Auditors' remuneration comprises following: ' .
C : : ' March 31,2019 March 31; 2018
{INR in Million}  (INR in Million)

Stétutory Audit [Fees

_ - o e 025 . 0.24
Tax Audit Fees B ' L E R o 11 . S 0.06
Certification Fees o o PR ' o.0m T

* Total ' o L 0.32 - 031
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23.1

23.3

Contingent Llabllitles/ Commitments

The ACIT, Contral Circle 1(3), Ahmedabad passed assessment order and Issied demand notice for il amount, therehy
rejecting the ¢lalm of refund of INR 0,29 Millien, in relation to the assessmant year 2011-12, The Company had in
otighnal retum shown its total incomae as INR 0.94 Million belng gain on sisle of mutual funds, Subsequently, it filed a
revised return showing i Incoma. Pursuant to the aforesaid assessment order, the ACIT, Central Circle — 11},
Ahmedabad treated the come from sale of mutual funds as capltal gains and made addition of INR 0,94 Miltion to the
letal income. The Company preferred an appeal before the CIT, {Appeals) againsl the said assessment order,
Subsequenlly, the CIT {Appeals), through its order, decided the appeal against the Company. The Company has
preferred appeal before the ITAT, Abmadabad, The matter is currently pending.

The DCIT, Central Circle 1{1), Ahmedabad served an assessment order to the Company along with & demand netice lor
INR 5.68 Miflion {net of claim of refund of NR 4.84 Million) in relation 10 the assessment year 2012-13. Pursuant Lo
the aforesaid assessment order, the DCIT, Central Circle (1), Ahmedabad treated the income from sale of nutual
funds and the inlerest received from Oxed deposits as income liable to tax and made additien of INR 28.60 Million 1o
Total Income. The Company preferred an appeal before the CIT, Appeals against the sald assessment order. The appeal
wiss decided In company's favour. However the Income Tax Depariment has filed appeal agatnst the said order of CIT
(A} before ITAT. The matter is currently pending.

There were ne Commiiments outstanding as on March 31, 2019,




24 Incoma tax
A) Doe Lo tosses, the company has nol recopgnised any 1ax expanse iy statement of predil and loss account, So reconciliatlon bhatween Lax exponse and accounting profit

is nol roeguirod

) Deferved tax {INR la Miltion)

Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance sheet

Particulars {refer nole 2 below)
March 31,2019  March 31,2018 18-19 1718

tmpact of Tair valzalion of investment (4.70) {2.99) {1.70) (162
Imipacl of Talr valunlion ol derivative conliact - - 93,17
Inlangible Asset (022.88) {1,081.588} 159.00 (31.20°
Property Plant and Equipments - - . (0,80
Expendilure alfowabile on payment basis 317,75 338.83 {21.08) BLAG
Unused losses avallable tor offselling apatnsl fulure Laxable income (0Y.02 715,19 (136.38) (112,81
Deferred tax expense/{(income) - -
Net deferred tax assets/(llabilitles) {0.82) (0.85)

Deferred Tax Asset not recognized {refer note no, 2 befow) 5065 560,90

dotn

1 The Company oflsels lax assels and liabilites IFand only 1IF10 has a legally enforceabie right Lo sel off current tax assels and currenl tax liabilities and
the deferred Lax assets and defesred tax llabillties relate to income taxes levied by the same Lax aulhority.

2 Asamatler of prudence, the company has recopnised deferred Lax assets on deduclible Leenporary differences and carry lorward of unused tax losses in the books Lo
Lhe extent of deferred Lax liability balance




25 farning Poer Share {EPS):
The fellowing reflects the income and share data used in the baste and diluled EPS complations:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR 10 Milllon) (INR in MiElon)
Not (Less) attributable 1o equity holders: {11271} {393.55)
Total ne, of equity shares at the end of Lthe year 10,00,60,000 10,69,60,000
Waelghted average number of equily shares for baste and dllided EPS 10,09,60,000 10,08,60,000
Naminal value of equity shares 10 10
Baslc and Diluted earping per share (1.12) (3.90)
26 Employee Benefits Disclosure:
it Deflned Contribution Plans:

Amount of iNR. 3:37 million (March 31, 2018: INR, 2.81 million} is recognised as axpenses and included in Note No. 20 "Employee Benefils
txpenses”

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR in MIlHon) {INR In Milllon)
Contributien to Provident Funds 231 1.86
Contributicn to Benevolent Fund 0.04
Contribution to ESIC 1.02
Total 3.37
I Defined benefit plans - Gratuity beneflt plan:
Features of the defined benefit
Remarls
plan
Bencfit offered 15 7 26 x Satary x Huration of Service
Salary definition Basle Salary including Dearmess Allowance (if any)
Benefit ceiling Benefit ceiling of R, 20,00,000 was applied
Vesting conditions 5 years of continuous service [ Not applicable in case of death / disability )
Benefit eligibility Upon Deatl or Resignation / Withdrawal or Retirement
Retirement age 58 years or 04/07/2030 whichever is earlier

Risk to the Plan
Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity

Actuarial Risk:

It is the risk that benefits will cost mare than expected. This can arise due to onc of the following reasons:

Adverse Salary Growth Experience; Safary hikes that are higher than the assumed safary escalation will result into an increase in Obligation al a
rate that is higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be paid
earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cashflow will [ead to an actuariat loss or gain
depending on the relative vaiues of the assumed salary growth and discount rate,

Variahility in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will be
paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date. '

Liguidity Risk: .
Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such employees
resign / retire from the company there can be strain on the cashflows.

Market Risk:

Mariet risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financiai markets. One actuarial assurnption that
has a materfal effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in
"Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa, This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and
hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. '




Leglslative Risk:

Lepislative risl ds the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or eeduction in the plan assets due Lo change in the lepislation / regulation. The
rovernmaent may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requising the companies Lo pay higher benefits to the employees, This will divectly
affect the present vatue of the Defined Beneflit Obligation and the same will have 10 bo recognized Immedintely in the year when any such
amentdment Is effective.

C The present value of ebligation ln respect of gralidty Is determing based on actuardal valuation ustag 1he Project Unit Credit Method as prosciled

by the Indian Accounting Standard - 19, Gridully has been recognised in the financkal statements as per details given below:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR In Milllon) {INR T Miltlon)
Defined benefit obligations as at beginning of the year - A 2.97 1.88
Cost charged to statement of proflt and loss
Current service cost (.73 047
Interest cost 0.21 .13
Sub-total Included in statement of proflt and loss - B : 0,94 0.70
Remeasurement galns/{losses In other comprehenslve Income
Actuarial Loss/{Gain) due to clsange In financlal assumptions 0.05 {0,10)
Actuarial Loss/{Gain) due to chasge In demographic
Actuarial Lass/{Gain) due to experience ' 0.02 (.50
Benefits Paid {0,22) -
Sub-total included in OCI - C (0.16) 039
Defined benefit obligations as at end of the year (A+34+C) 3.75 2.97

The principal assumptions used in determining above defined henefit obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate 1.35% 1.55%
Salary Growth Rate ' 6.00% 6.00%
Withelrawal rate 159 at younger ages 15% al younger ages
reducing to 3% at older reducing to 3% at older
ages ages
Indian Assured Lives Inclian Assured Lives
Mortality rate Mortality {2006-08) Mortaiity {2006-08}
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Sensitivity [evel (INR in Million) {INR in Million)
Discount rate 0.50% increase {0.11) {0,009}
0.50% decrease 0.12 0.09
Salary Growth Rate 0.50% increase 0.12 0.09
0.50% dacrease . {0.12) . (0.09)
Withdrawal rate 10% increase {0.00} (0.00)
10% decrease N.00 . 0.00

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on deflned benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key asssumpticns occuring at the end of repcrtmg period,

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other reievant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Since the obligation is unfunded, there is no Asset-Liability Matchmg strategy device for the plan. Accordingly, there is no expected contnhuuan
in the next annual reporting period.
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Maturity Proflle of the Defined Benefit Obilgation

As at March 31, 2019 INR [n Millton %
2024 0.37 5.90%
2021 0.38 6.10%
2022 0,39 6.20%
2023 0.37 5.90%
2024 0.34 5.50%
20052028 1.6] 26.00%

As at March 31, 2018 INR i MillHon %
2019 0.30 G.00%
2020 0.30 6,00%
2021 0,31 6.30%
2022 0.31 6.20%
2023 0.29 5.80%
2024 - 2028 1.30 26.20%

The average duration of the defined beaefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is $1.02 years (March 31, 2018: 11.99 years).

Other employee henceflt:

Salaries, Wages and Bonus include INR 0,58 million (Previous Year INR 0.37 million) towards estimate of provision made in respect of
accumulated feave encashment/compensated absences.

Movement In Provislons:

Major Maintenance Reserve (Refer note 13}

March 31, 2019
{INR in Million)

March 31, 2018
{INR in Milllion)

Carrying amount as at 01.04,2018 1,093.20 81516
Add: Provision made duwring the year 124.59 196.01
Add: increase during the Year in the discounted amount due to passage of fime - 81.92
less: Amounts used during the year - -
Less: Unused amounts reversed during the year - -
Carrying amount as at 31,03.2019 1,217.79 1,003.20
Expacted outflow for Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 1,093.20
124.50

Expacted outflow for Financial Year ondod March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2021

_Periodical Major Maintenance

Provision for major maintenance in respect of toll roads maintained by the Company under service concession arrangements and classified as

intangible assets represents contractual ohligations to restore infrastructure facility to a specified level of serviceability in respect of such asset,

Estimate of the provision is measured using number of factors, such as contractual requiréments, road usage, expert opinions and expected price

levels.
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Related Party Disclosures:

Related party diselosures as requised under the Indian Accounting Standard - 24 on “Refaled Parly Disclosures” are given helow:

Name of telated Parttes and Nature of Relatlonship :

Description of Relatlonship
Utimate Holding Company
Holding Company

Company having significant
influence

Key Managerial Personnel

Name of the Related Party

Sadbhav Engincering timited {SELY
Sadbhav Infrastruclure Project Lud {SIPL)

Montecario Limited (M1)

M. Vasistha C. Patel, Managing Director
Mr. Nitin R, Palel, Executive Direclor
Mr, Arun Patel, Independent Direclor
Mr. Ravi Kapoor, lidlependent Direclos

Mr. Digish Shah, Direcior

Mrs. Purvi Parlikh, Independent Director

Transactlons with Related Parties durlng the Year;

Rent Expense
SEL

Repayment of Subordinate Debt

SIPL
MonteCarlo Limited

Moblllzatlon Advance glven
SIPL.
MonteCario Limited

Director Sltting Fees
NHin Patel

Vasistha Patel
Digish Shal

Arun Patel

Ravi Kapoor

Purvi Parikh

Balances outstanding as at March 31, 2019 :

Payable towards Rent & Reimbursement of Expense

SEL

Payahle towards Sub Debt
MonteCarlo Limited
SIPL

Mobilizatlon Advance
SIPL
ManteCarlo Limited

Terms and conditions of the balance outstanding:
1. The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to these that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at

March 31, 2019
(INR In Milllon)

March 31, 2018
{INR in Million)

106

26.80

0.03
0.03
0.04
0.04
0.04
0.05

1.06

223350
60,20

G0.00

0.03
0.03

0.04
0.04
0.09

March 31, 2019
(ENR in Millllon}

March 31, 2018
(INR In Million)

2.09

18538
620.62

90.60
26.80

1.2

185.38
620.62

90.00

the year-end are unsecured and interest free excepts short term loan and settlement accurs in cash as per the terms of the agreement.

2. The Company has not provided any commitment to the related party as at March 31, 2019 (March 31, 2018: INR Nil}

Segment Reporting

The operating segment of the company is identified to be "DBFOT (Toll Basis)", as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews business

performance at an overall company level as one segment and hence, does not have any additional disclosures to be made under Ind AS 108

. Operating Lease:

_Operating Segments. Further, the Company aiso primarily operates under one geographical segment namely India.

Office premise of the Company have been taken on operating lease basis. The lease rent paid during the year INR. 1.06 million (March 31, 2018;
INR. 1.06 million). These operating lease agreement are cancellable by giving short period notice by either of the parties to the agreement,
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Disclosure of Financial Instruments by Category
{INR In million)
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Flnancial instruments by Nota N
categorles no. FVTPL  FVTOCI Amortized cost FVTPL FYTOC! Amortized cost
Financind asset
investment in Mutuaf fund 7 473.17 - - 257.61
Cash & Cash Equivalent 9 - - 32,27 . - 15.54
Trade Receivahle 8 - - - - - 0,19
Qther Financial Asset 5 - . 30.03 - - 23.69
Total Financial Assets 473.17 - 62.30 257.61 - 6042
Financial liabHity
Non Current Borrowings 12 - “ 7,711.89 - 7,881,07
Trade Payables 14 . - 15.14 - - 30.87
Other Financial Liabilities 15 - - 185.69 - - 105,58
Total Financial Liahilities - - 7,912.72 “ - 8,025.51

32,1 Default and breaches

33

There are no defaults with respect to payment of prmcap'll interest, sinking fund or redemption terms and no breaches of the terms
and conditions of the loan.
There are no breaches during the year which permitted lenders to demand accelerated payment,

Long term borrowings contain debt covenants relating to debt-equity ratio and debt service coverage ratio, The Company has satisfied
ali the debt covenants prescribed in the terms of respective loan agreement as at reporting date,

Fair value disclosures for financial assets and financial {iabilities
Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than
those with carrying amounts that are reasonahle approximations of fair values:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Particular Carrvin
Fair value Carrying amount Fair value yIng
amount
Financial Assets .
Investment in Mutual fund 473.17 473,17 257.G1 LY NS

Total Financial Assets 4737 473.17 257.61 257.61

Notes: :

a. The management assessed that the fair valucs of Inveslment in mutual fund, cash and cash equivaients, other financlal assets, trade
payables and other financial liabilities approximate thelr carrymg amounts Iargely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments, : : '

h. The carring va!ue of Company 5 :nterest~bearmg borrowmgs are reasonable approxlmatlons of fair values as the borrowmg carry
floating interest rate. . . . .

c. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged inacurrent
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or llqmdatlon sale, :




33.1 Fairvalue hierarchy

The following labte provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assels and liabilities:
Cwantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets as al March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

Fair value measurement using

Note Significant observahle inputs
{Level 2}
No, March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Assets measured at fair value o
Fair value through profit & loss
7 _ A73.17 257.61.

Investment in Mutual fund

There have been no transfers between level 1 and fevel 2 during the years.

(Below space intentionally left blank)
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{a)

Financlal Instruments risk management objectlve & policies

The Company’s principal finaneial Habilities comprise borrowlings and rade B other payables. The main purpose of these financial labititios is w finance
Thir Company’s aperallons and 1o suppord ifs operations, The Contpany’s pringipal inaiclal assels include Investmants,other receivables and cash and bank
hafance thal derive directy frem its operations,

The Company's actvities expose It Lo market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. (n order 1o minimise any adverse offects on the inanclal pedormance of the
company, derivative financial instruments, such as forelpn cursency opton contracts are entered 10 hedge cerladn foreign currency exposures and inlerest
rale swaps 1o hedge certain variable Interest rale oxposures. (Derivalives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading / speculative
instriments.)

The Board of Directors bas overall responsibllity for the establishment and oversight of tha Company's risk management lramework. Risk imanagemaent
systems are reviewad periodically 1o reflect chanpes in markel conditions amd the Company’s aclivities, The Board of Directors oversee compliance with
the Company’s risk management policles and procedures, and reviews the risk managemint lramework,

Marlket risk

The market risk is the risk that the falr vilue or future cash flows of a financkal instrument will lucluale because of changes in market prices. Markel risk
comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and olher price risk. Financial instruments affected by markel sisk include borrowings,
Investments, other recelvables, trade and other payables and derivallve financial instrimaents,

Within the various methodologles 1o analyse and manage risk, Company has implemented a system based en “sensilivily analysis” on symmatric basis, This
Loot enables the risk managers 1o identify the risk position of the ertities, Sensitivily anatysis provides an approximate quantification of the exposure In tho
avent thit certain specified parameters were Lo be met under a speclfic set of assumplions. The risk estimates provided here assume:

-a parallet shift of 25-basls points of the Interest rate viedd curves in all currencles
- o simubtaneous, parailel loreign exchange rates shift in which the INR appreciates / depreciates against afl currencies by 2%

“The polential economic impacl, due lo these assumptions, is based on the occurrence of adverse / inverse market conditions and reflects eslimated
changes resulling from the sensitivity analysis. Actual results that are included in Lhe Statement of profit & loss may differ malerially from these estimales
due to actuat developments in the global financial markets.

The analyses exclude Lthe impact of movements in market variabies on: the carrying values of gratuity and provisions.

The lollowing assumption has been made in catculating the sensitivity analyses:
- The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effecl of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on llw
financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

Interest Nate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the sensilivity of financial assets and liabifities to changes in markel rates of interest. The Campany seeks to mitigale such risk
by enlering inlo interest rale derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps. Interest rate swap agreements are used Lo adjust the proportion
of total debt, that are subject 1o variable and fixed interest rates.

Under an interesl rate swap agreement, the Company either agrees to pay an amount equal to a specified fixed-rate of interest times a notlonal principal
amotnt, and to receive In return an amount equal to a specified variable-rale of interest times the same notionai principal amount or, vice-versa, to
receive a fixed-rate amount and to pay a variable-rate amount. The notional amounts of the contracts are not exchanged. No ofher cash payments are
made unless the agreement is terminated prior to malurity, in which case the amount paid or received in settlement is established by agreement at the
time of termination, and usually represents the net present value at current rates of inlerest, of the remaining obligations to exchange payments under
the terms of the contract. :
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{d)

The company's exposare 10 Interest rate risk due to varlable Interest rate borrowings Is as follows:

Partleulars March 31,2010 March 31, 2018

{INR In Milllon)  {INR in Miltlon)

Varfable rate borrowlngs v INR ‘ 7,933.14 B,048,25
Interest Rate Sensltivity

The lolowing Lable demonstrates the sensitivity Lo a reasorably possiide change by interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all
olher variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax 1s affected through the Impact on {loating rate borrowings, as follows:

liffect on loss before tax

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR in MilHon) {INRIn Milllon)

increase in 25 hasis point {19.83) (20.12)

Decrease In 25 basis point 19.83 20,12

The effect of interest rale changes on (uture cash flows is excluded from this analysis.

Credlt risk

Credit risk 1s the risk thal a counterparty will nol meel its oblligations under o financial Instrumaent or custemer contract, feading Lo a linancial loss, The
Company is not exposed Lo credlt risk from ils operating activities as the company is collecting toll in cash and does aot Bave oulstanding any receivablas.
Howaver, The Company Is exposed Lo credil risk related to linancing activites, Ingcluding temporary Investment s motual fund and other Gnanclal
instruments,

Financlal instruments and Temporary Investment In Mutual Fund
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s finance department in accordance with the Company's policy,

lnvestments of surplus funds are made only in accordance with company policy. The Company menitors the ratings, credit spreads and financial sLrength
ol ils counterparties. Based on iLs on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Comapny adjusts its exposure 1o various counterparties, The Company's
maximum exposure te credit risk for the components of the Balance sheel as of March 31,2019 is of INR 535.46 million and March 31, 2018 is (NR 327.02

million.

Liguldity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and (uture cash and collateral abligations without incurring unacceptable
losses. The Company's objective is 1o, al all times maintain optimum levels of ifquidity 1o meet its cash and colfateral requirements. The Company closely
monilors its lquidity position and deploys cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including debt at an optimised cost,

The table below summarises tha maturity profife of the Company’s financial liabilitics based on contractual undiscounted payments:

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities

Particulars Total On Demand Upto 1 year 1-2years 2 -5 years > 5 years

As at March 31,2019 . .
Bonds & debentures 3,828.08 - 101.23 161.41 . 773.23 2,792.21

Rupee Term Loan & Overdraft From bank 1,105.07 _' 61.72 87.43 . 46513 3,490.79
Trade Payables - 15.14 _ ) 15.14 - - -
Other Financial Liahilities 28.96 - 28.96 - - -

As at March 31,2018 - : )
Bonds & debentures 2,441.04 - 38.08 '57.44 336.45 2,009.07

Rupee Term Loan & Overdraft From bank 5,607.21 - 69,31 59,54 563.28 4,875.08

Trade Payables 38.87 - 38.87 - - -

Other Financial Liabitities 3.91 - 3.91 - - -
Collateral

The Company's all financial & other assets have been hypothicated against Borrowings inorder to fuifill the collaterai requirement of the Lenders.The fair
value of such financial & other assets is disciosed in note no. 33 : T




35 Caplal Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, Capital consisl of share capital, Securfties Premiam, Qther equily in form
of Suborcinate Debl and all other reserves attributable o the equity helders of the Conypany.

Tha primary objective of the Company's capital maagomont s 1o onsure that 10 malntains an efficiont capital structore and
hoaflhy capital ratos in order to support its business and maximise shareholder vaius,

The Company manages s capllal structure and makes adjustments to 1L light of changes In economic condittons or its busingss
requirements, To maintain or adfust the capital stricture, the Company may adjust the dividend payment 1o shareholdars, roturn
capilal 1o shareholders, issue new shares or obtained addittonal sub-ordinate debls. The Company monilors capital using deht
equity ratio which does not exceed 2.06:1, which s Lolal Borrowlngs divided by Wwtal equily excluding balance of deficil in
stitement of proflt & loss, Grant recelved frem National Highway Aulhority of India has also been considered as an Equily for the
parpose ol calculation of debl 1o equity.

The key performance ratios are as follows:

Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR In Million) {INR In Million}

Borrowings (refer nele 12) 1,939,014 B,018.25
Total Debts « A 7,033.14 8,048.25
Eequity Share Capital {refer note 16} 1009.60 1009.66
Qther Equily (refer note 11) $06.00 806.00
Grant Frony NFHAL 2,735.90 2,735.99
Total Equity - 4,551.59 4,551,59
Debt equity ratio (A/B) 174 1.77

{Befow space intentionally left Dlonk)
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Disclosure pursuant to Appendlng - £ to Ind AS 115 - "Revenue from Contract with Customer"

Bescriptlon and classification of the arrangment

The Company has entered nto Service Concession Arrangement ('SCAY) with National Highway Authorily of India
{NHAL) dated March 09, 2010 for 1he purposa of four laning of Bjapur- Hungund section of NH-23 from KM 102 10 XM
202 the state of Karnataka on Design, Bulll, Finance, OGperate and Transfer (DEFOT) Toll hasis. The Concession
Period 15 of 20 years including construction period of 930 days, Further, the Company has received an extension of
23,27 days from NHAI for foree majeure event and accordingly the Company shall be entitled to all the rights and
obligations of the agreement for the extended concesston period, The Company abtained completion certificale on
20t June 2012 from the NHAL As per the SCA, the company is entltled to charge users of the public service, honc
the service arrangement has bHeen classificd as Intangible Asset.

Signiflcant Terms of the arrangemants

Revislon of Fees:
Fees shall be revised annually on Aprif 01 subject to the provisions of the National Highways Fee (Determination of
Rntes and Cotlection) Rules, 2008,

Modificatlon of Concesslon Perlod:

The Concession period shall he modified:

If Actual Average Traffic falls short of Targel Traffic by more than 2.5%, the concession period shall be increased hy
15% thereof for every 1% shortfall, but not more than 20% of the concessien period,

If Actual Average Trallic exceeds Targel Traffic by more than 2.5%, the concession peried shall be reduced by 0.75%
thereof for every 1% increase, but not more than 10% of the concession period.

If the average daily tralfic exceeds the designed capacity of the project highway, the concession period shali he
extended (not more than 5 years) In such a way so as to enable the concessionaire 10 yield Equity IRR of 16% p.a wilh
an assumption of debt equity ratio of 70:30

If the additional tollway has been constructed, either the concession pertod shall be extended or compensation has
heen granted.

In case of material default or breach of agreement by MHAI which causes suspension of or reduction In coliection of
Fees, it shall pay to the Concessionaire, the compensation for consequence of such material defauit or extend the
concession period.

If, due to change in the faw, company suffers an increase in cost or reduction in net after-tax return or the other
financial burden subject to the limits specified in the SCA, the SCA shall he modified in such a way that it nullifies such
impact of cost increase, reduction in return or other financial burden. However if no such madification is done,
Company may require by notice to the authority to pay an amount that would place the company in the same
financial position that it would have enjoyed, had there been no such change in the faw. Any dispute in the said
procedure shall be settled in accordance with the Dispute Resolution Procedure. Opposite will be the case, in case of
reduction in cost.

Rights of the Company to use Project Highway

To demand, coliect and appropriate, Fee from vehicles and Users fiable for payment of Fee for using the Project
Highway or any part thereof and refuse entry of any vehicle if the Fee due is not paid.
Right of Way, access and licence to the Site.

Obligation of the Concessionaire

The comapny shall not assign, transfer or sublet or create any lien or Encumbrance on the SCA, or the Concession
granted or on the whole or any part of the Project Highway nor transfer, fease or part possession thereof, save and
except as expressly permitted by SCA or the Substitution Agreement. The project highway means site comprising the
existing road comprising NH-13 from KM 102,000 to KM 2032.000 and all Project asset, and its subsequent
development and augmetation in accordance with the SCA.

The company is under obligation to carry out the routine and periodic maitenance of Project Highway as per Schedule
K of the SCA. :

Details of any assets to be given or taken at the end of concession period

At the end of the Concession period the company shall deliver the actual or constructive possession of the Project
Highway, free and clear of ali encumbrances.

Details of Termination

SCA can be terminated on account of default of the company or NHAI in the circumstances as specified under Article
37 of the SCA. i

Changes in arrangement occurred during the period

With Reference to the Letter NHAI/RO-BNG/16017/2018-19/4149 dated 27.03.2019, extention of 23.27 days has been
granted by NHAI to consessionaire with respect to suspension of user fee collection due to demonitisation by
Government of india from 09.11.2016 to 02.12.2016. The claim has been made by consessionaire in aceordance witl)
Article 34 "Force Majeure" of SCA.
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Revenue Recognltion

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applfed ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how
much and when revenue is Lo be recognised. ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenve and tnd AS 11 Construelion Contracts. The Company has
adpoted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative catch-up transition methad applied to contracts that were not completed as al April 1, 2018, The
effect on the adoption of Ind AS 115 was Insignificant. The adoption of Ind AS 115 required enhanced disclosures aboul Lhe nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers. Refer Note No.1.3 of Signilicant
accounting poflcies.

Previous year figures have bean regrouped/roclassified wherever necessary, to facilitate comparabilily with cusrent year's classification,

As per our report of even date

For Manubhal & Shah LLP For & On behalf of the Board of Dlrectors of
Chartered Accountants Bijapur-Hengund Tollway Private Umited
ICAI Firm Reglstratlon No, 106041W/W100136

Wf& . {Vasistha Rfel)

((

= (NItinPatel)

(K. C. Patel) Managing birector actor
Partner DIN: DODABA24 K DIN: 00466330
Membership No.30883 o me A d
/ £ >/ \.\F’*“W‘}l
/ Hardik Modl} {Varun Mehta)
Company Secretary Chief Financial Offlcer
M. No. - F9193
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 13, 2019 Date: May 13, 2019

]
AHMEDABAD | <






